
i 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL, PENNS PLACE, 
PETERSFIELD, HAMPSHIRE GU31 4EX 

 
Telephone:  01730 266551 

Website:  www.easthants.gov.uk 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 

Date: Thursday, 4 November 2021 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Council Chamber, Penns Place, Petersfield, GU31 4EX 

 
Public Attendance 
 
Please note that the Council Chamber has very limited capacity to safely 
accommodate members of the public in a Covid secure manner.  Please contact the 
named officer below if you wish to attend in person but note that priority will be given 
to those who have registered to make a deputation, otherwise we would encourage 
attendance virtually via the webcast on the Council’s website. 
 

 
Membership:      Councillor S Pond (Chairman) 
 
Councillors A Williams (Vice-Chairman), D Ashcroft, D Evans, A Glass, S Hunt, 
M Johnson, P Langley, C Louisson, J Matthews, S Schillemore, I Thomas and 
E Woodard 
 
Reserves: K Budden (Reserve), K Carter (Reserve), N Drew (Reserve), G Hill 
(Reserve), T Maroney (Reserve) and N Taylor (Reserve) 
 

(THE QUORUM FOR THIS MEETING IS 7 VOTING COUNCILLORS) 
 

 
The business to be transacted is set out below:  
 
 
Gill Kneller 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Date of Publication: Wednesday, 27 October 2021 
 
Contact Officer: Lydia Merriman 01730 234073 
 Email:  lydia.merriman@easthants.gov.uk 

Working in Partnership 



ii 
 

 
 

  Page Nos 

  
 

 

1.  Apologies for Absence   
 

 

2.  Confirmation of Minutes   
 
Please note that it is helpful if Councillors could give advance notice, 
to Democratic Services, of any questions they wish to raise in respect 
of the Minutes. 
 
To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 October 2021. 
 
 

9 - 18 

3.  Chairman's Announcements   
 

 

4.  Declarations of Interest   
 
Councillors are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest which they may have in any item of 
business on the agenda no later than when that item is reached.  
Unless dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any 
discussion of, or vote on, or discharge any function related to any 
matter in which you have a pecuniary interest as defined by 
regulations made by the Secretary of State under the Localism Act 
2011.  You must withdraw from the room or chamber when the 
meeting discusses and votes on the matter. 
 

 

 

Matters for Decision 
 

 
 

5.  Acceptance of Supplementary Matters   
 

 

6.  Future Items   
 

19 - 20 

7.  Report of the Director of Regeneration and Place   
 

 

 

PART 1 - East Hampshire District Council Items 
 

 
 

 

Section I 
 

 
 

7.(i)   55824/001/FUL/SR - Land South of Passfield Mill Business Park, 
Mill Lane, Passfield, Liphook   
AMK Chauffeur Drive 

 

Retrospective application - Change of use of grazing field to car 

park including siting of a porta cabin for staff (as amended by 

plans received 6 and 16 September 2021). 

21 - 42 



iii 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 

Section II 
 

 
 

 There are no Section 2 items within this agenda 
 
 

 

PART 2 - South Downs National Park Items 
 

 
 

 

Section I 
 

 
 

 None 
 

 

Section II 
 

 
 

 None 
 
 
  
 

 



iv 
 

 
  
 



 

 
v 

  Page Nos 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 01730 234073. 
 
 

Internet 
 

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the East 
Hampshire District Council website: www.easthants.gov.uk 
 
 

Public Attendance and Participation 
 

Please note that the Council Chamber has very limited capacity to safely 
accommodate members of the public in a Covid secure manner.  Please 
contact the named officer below if you wish to attend in person but note that 
priority will be given to those who have registered to make a deputation, 
otherwise we would encourage attendance virtually via the webcast on the 
Council’s website. 
 
Disabled Access 
 

All meeting venues have full access and facilities for the disabled. 
 

Emergency Procedure 
 
Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound. 
 
PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY. 
 
DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO. 
 
No Smoking Policy 
 

All meeting venues operate a no smoking policy on all premises and grounds 
 

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. This report considers planning applications submitted to the Council, as the Local 
Planning Authority, for determination.  It may also include items which are being 
determined by the Council on behalf of the South Downs National Park Authority. 

East Hampshire District Council is acting as an agent for the South Downs National 
Park Authority in accordance with an agreement signed under Section 101 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990.  Under this arrangement the Council can determine 
planning applications on sites within the South Downs National Park area of the district 
on behalf of the National Park Authority.  Applications for the South Downs National 
Park are prefixed with the letters SDNP.  

2.1. SECTIONS IN THE REPORT 

The report is divided into two main parts;  

Part 1 – East Hampshire District Council 

This part of the report considers applications and related planning matters which are 
being determined or considered by the Council as the Local Planning Authority.   

Part 2 – South Downs National Park Authority 

This part of the report considers applications and related planning matters which fall 
within East Hampshire District’s area of the South Downs National Park and which the 
Council is determining or considering on behalf of the South Downs National Park 
Authority.   

Each part of the report is split into two sections:   

Section 1 - Schedule of Application Recommendations  

This Section deals with planning applications that have been received by the Council 
and which require the Planning Committee to make a decision to grant or refuse 
permission.  Each item contains a full description of the proposed development, details 
of the consultations undertaken and summary of the responses received, an 
assessment of the proposal against current policy, a commentary and concludes with 
a recommendation.  A presentation with slides will be made to Committee.  Public 
participation is allowed on Section 1 items. 

Section 2 – Other matters  

This Section deals with other planning matters which are not the subject of a current 
application or are current applications which have already been determined and have 
been subject to a committee resolution to grant or refuse.  

Page 1

Agenda Annex



 

No formal presentation will be made to Committee, unless required, and there will be 
no public participation.” 

2.2. All information, advice, and recommendations contained in this report are understood 
to be correct at the time of publication, which is more than one week in advance of the 
Committee meeting.  Because of the time constraints, some reports may have been 
prepared in advance of the final date for consultee responses or neighbour comment.  
Where a recommendation is either altered or substantially amended between 
preparing the report and the Committee meeting or where additional information has 
been received, a separate Supplementary Matters paper will be circulated at the 
meeting to assist Councillors.  This paper will be available to members of the public. 

3. PLANNING POLICY 

3.1. All planning applications must be determined in accordance with the development plan, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise (Section 38(6) of the Town and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).  If the development plan contains material policies 
or proposals and there are no other material considerations, the application should be 
determined in accordance with the development plan.  Where there are other material 
considerations, the development plan will be the starting point, and other material 
considerations will also be taken into account.  One such consideration will be whether 
the plan policies are relevant and up to date.  The relevant development plans are the 
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan, The East Hampshire District Joint Core Strategy 
2014, the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Housing and Employment Allocations 
2016 and the saved policies in the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review 
2006.  The Development Plan also includes made neighbourhood Plans. 

3.2. Although not necessarily specifically referred to in the Committee report, the relevant 
development plan will have been used as a background document and the relevant 
policies taken into account in the preparation of the report on each item.   

3.3. The East Hampshire District Joint Core Strategy and Local Plan have policies that 
contain criteria that must be met if a particular form of development is to be allowed.  
Paragraph 2 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) February  2019 states:  
“Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.”   

3.4. The Council may sometimes decide to grant planning permission for development that 
departs from a development plan if other material considerations indicate that it should 
proceed.  One of these material considerations is whether the plan is up-to-date in 
terms of housing delivery.  

4. OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS  

4.1. Material considerations must be genuine planning considerations, i.e. they must be 
related to the development and use of land in the public interest.  They must also fairly 
and reasonably relate to the application concerned.  The Courts are the arbiters of 
what constitutes a material consideration.  All the fundamental factors involved in land-
use planning are included, such as the number, size, layout, siting, design, and 
external appearance of buildings and the proposed means of access, together with 

Page 2



 

landscaping, impact on the neighbourhood, and the availability of infrastructure.   

4.2. Matters that should not be taken into account are: 

 loss of property value  loss of view 
 land and boundary disputes  matters covered by leases or covenants 
 the impact of construction 

work 
 property maintenance issues 

 need for development (save in 
certain defined circumstances) 

 the identity or personal characteristics of 
the applicant 

 competition between firms,   or matters that are dealt with by other 
legislation, such as the Building 
Regulations (e.g. structural safety, fire 
risks, means of escape in the event of 
fire etc). - The fact that a development 
may conflict with other legislation is not 
a reason to refuse planning permission 
or defer a decision.  It is the applicant’s 
responsibility to ensure compliance with 
all relevant legislation. 

 

4.3. Government statements of planning policy are material considerations that must be 
taken into account in deciding planning applications.  These statements cannot make 
irrelevant any matter that is a material consideration in a particular case.  Nevertheless, 
where such statements indicate the weight that should be given to relevant 
considerations, decision-makers must have proper regard to them.   

4.4. In those cases where the development plan is not relevant, for example because there 
are no relevant policies, the planning application should be determined on its merits in 
the light of all the material considerations.  

5. PLANNING CONDITIONS AND OBLIGATIONS  

5.1. The Council can impose conditions on planning permissions only where there is a clear 
land-use planning justification for doing so.  Conditions should be used in a way that is 
clearly seen to be fair, reasonable, and practicable.  One key test of whether a 
particular condition is necessary is if planning permission would have to be refused if 
the condition were not imposed.  Otherwise, such a condition would need special and 
precise justification.  

 

5.2. Where it is not possible to include matters that are necessary for a development to 
proceed in a planning condition the Council can agree a planning obligation under 
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  Planning obligations should 
meet the Secretary of State's policy tests.  They should be:  
 necessary; 
 relevant to planning; 
 directly related to the proposed development; 
 fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed development; and 

Page 3



 

 reasonable in all other respects. 

 

5.3. The use of planning obligations is governed by the fundamental principle that planning 
permission may not be bought or sold.  It is therefore not legitimate for unacceptable 
development to be permitted because of benefits or inducements offered by a 
developer, which are not necessary to make the development acceptable in planning 
terms.  Planning obligations are only a material consideration to be taken into account 
when deciding whether to grant planning permission, and it is for the Council to decide 
what weight should be attached to a particular material consideration.  

6. PLANNING APPEALS  

Applicants have the right of appeal to the Secretary of State if an application is refused, or 
granted subject to conditions, or if it has not been determined within the specified period.  
Appeals are administered by the Planning Inspectorate - an executive agency reporting to 
the Secretary of State.  Appeals are considered by written representation, hearings, and 
public inquiries.  In planning appeals, it is normally expected that both parties will pay their 
own costs.  Costs can however, be awarded against the Council where it: 
 

(a) fails to determine a planning application in good time – the Council must have good 
planning reasons to explain and justify why it did not make a decision in time. 

(b) fails to carry out adequate prior investigation consistent with national policy and 
guidance. 

(c) prevents or delays development that should clearly be permitted having regard to 
the development plan, national policy statements and any other material 
considerations.  It is the Councils responsibility to produce evidence to show clearly, 
why the development cannot be permitted. Reasons for refusal must be 

 complete,  
 precise,  
 specific 
 relevant to the application, and 
 supported by substantiated evidence.  

(d) fails to show reasonable planning grounds for taking a decision contrary to officer 
advice  

(e) gives too much weight to neighbour objections - the extent of local opposition is not, 
in itself, a reasonable ground for resisting development. To carry significant weight, 
opposition should be founded on valid planning reasons that is supported by 
substantial evidence. 

(f) relies on unsubstantiated objections where they include valid reasons for refusal but 
rely almost exclusively on local opposition from third parties, through 
representations and attendance at an inquiry or hearing, to support the decision. 

(g) fails to show that it has considered the possibility of imposing relevant planning 
conditions to allow development to proceed. 

 
The following are examples given in Planning Practice Guidance of circumstances that 
may lead to an award of costs against the Council: 
(a) ignoring relevant national policy – for example, the advice in NPPF, 
(b) where a proposal is contrary to the development plan but the relevant policy has 

been superseded by national policy which advocates an entirely different approach.  

Page 4



 

An example might be ignoring national advice in paragraph 77 of NPPF which may 
allow some market housing to bring forward a rural affordable housing exception 
site, 

(c) acting contrary to, or not following, well-established case law, 
(d) persisting in objections to a scheme, or part of a scheme, which has already been 

granted planning permission or which the Secretary of State or an Inspector has 
previously indicated to be acceptable, 

(e) not determining like cases in a like manner – for example, imposing an additional 
reason for refusal on a similar scheme to one previously considered by the planning 
authority where circumstances have not materially changed, 

(f) failing to grant a further planning permission for a scheme the subject of an extant 
or recently expired permission where there has been no material change in 
circumstances, 

(g) refusing to approve reserved matters when the objections relate to issues that 
should already have been considered at the outline stage, 

(h) imposing a condition that is not necessary, precise, enforceable, relevant to 
planning, relevant to the development permitted or reasonable and thereby does 
not comply with the advice in the Planning Practice Guidance on the use of 
conditions in planning permissions, 

(i) requiring the appellant to enter into or complete a planning obligation which does 
not accord with the tests in para 56 of the NPPF, or 

(j) not imposing conditions on a grant of planning permission where conditions could 
effectively have overcome the objection identified – for example, in relation to 
highway matters. 

 

7. THE SECRETARY OF STATE'S ROLE 

7.1 The Secretary of State has reserve powers to direct the council to refer an application 
to him/her for decision. This is what is meant by a 'called-in' application. In general, 
this power of intervention is used selectively and the Secretary of State will not interfere 
with the jurisdiction of local planning authorities unless it is necessary to do so.  The 
Planning Practice Guidance sets out the type of development proposals that directs 
local authorities to consult with the Secretary of State before granting planning 
permission. 

 

8. PROPRIETY 

8.1 Councillors are elected to represent the interests of the whole community in planning 
matters and not simply their individual Wards.  When determining planning applications 
they must take into account planning considerations only.  This can include views 
expressed on relevant planning matters.  Local opposition or support for a proposal is 
not in itself a ground for refusing or granting planning permission, unless it is founded 
upon valid planning reasons.  

9. PRIVATE INTERESTS  

9.1 The planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of one person 
against the activities of another, although private interests may coincide with the public 

Page 5



 

interest in some cases.  It can be difficult to distinguish between public and private 
interests, but this may be necessary on occasion.  The basic question is not whether 
owners and occupiers of neighbouring properties would experience financial or other 
loss from a particular development, but whether the proposal would unacceptably 
affect amenities and the existing use of land and buildings that ought to be protected 
in the public interest. Covenants or the maintenance/protection of private property are 
therefore not material planning consideration. 

10. OTHER LEGISLATION  

10.1 Non-planning legislation may place statutory requirements on planning authorities, or 
may set out controls that need to be taken into account (for example, environmental 
legislation, or water resources legislation).  The Council, in exercising its functions, 
also must have regard to the general requirements of other legislation, in particular:  

 The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, which prevents discrimination 
directly or indirectly in any functions, carried out by public authorities.  

 The Equality Act 2010, which places a duty on all those responsible for providing 
a service to the public not to discriminate against disabled people by providing a 
lower standard of service.  

 The Human Rights Act 1998, which incorporated provisions of the European 
Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) into UK law.  The general purpose of the 
ECHR is to protect human rights and fundamental freedoms and to maintain and 
promote the ideals and values of a democratic society.  It sets out the basic rights 
of every person together with the limitations placed on these rights in order to 
protect the rights of others and of the wider community.  The specific Articles of 
the ECHR relevant to planning include Article 6 (Right to a fair and public hearing), 
Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence), 
Article 14 (Prohibition of discrimination) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (Right to 
peaceful enjoyment of possessions and protection of property).  All planning 
applications are assessed to make sure that the subsequent determination of the 
development proposal is compatible with the Act.  If there is a potential conflict, 
this will be highlighted in the report on the relevant item. 
 

11. PUBLIC SPEAKING 

11.1 The Council has adopted a scheme for the public to speak on all Section 1 items. 
Where public speaking is allowed, the applicant or their representative, the local 
Parish/Town Council, and one objector may address the Committee, for a maximum 
of three minutes each, by prior invitation.  Members of the public wishing to speak must 
have contacted the Meeting Administrator in Democratic Services at least 48 hours 
before the meeting.  It is not possible to arrange to speak to the Committee at the 
Committee meeting itself. 

11.2 For probity reasons associated with advance disclosure of information under the 
Access to Information Act, neither the applicant, Parish Council, nor an objector will be 
allowed to circulate, show or display further material at, or just before, the Committee 
meeting.   

 

Page 6



 

12.  INSPECTION OF DRAWINGS 

12.1 All drawings are available for inspection on the internet at www.easthants.gov.uk and 
at the Planning Development Reception area during our normal office hours.  The files 
and drawings will also be available 30 minutes prior to the start of meeting for 
Councillors to inspect. 

13. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  However, in the event 
of an appeal, further resources will be put towards defending the Council’s decision.  
Rarely and in certain circumstances, decisions on planning applications may result in 
the Council facing an application for costs arising from a planning appeal.  Officers will 
aim to alert Members where this may be likely and provide appropriate advice in such 
circumstances. 

 
Simon Jenkins 
Director of Regeneration and Place 
 
Background Papers: 
 
 the individual planning application file (reference quoted in each case) 
 the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013 
 East Hampshire Joint Core Strategy 2014 
 East Hampshire Employment & Housing allocations Plan 2016 
 East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review 2006 - Saved Policies 
 Adopted Neighbourhood Plans: Alton, Bentley, Medstead & Four Marks, Ropley, 

Petersfield, Liss, and East Meon 
 Government advice and guidance contained in circulars, National Planning Policy 

Framework, Planning Practice Guidance and ministerial statements 
 any other document specifically referred to in the report. 

Page 7

http://www.easthats.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



  1 
Planning Committee 

(14.10.21) 
 
 

 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
At a meeting of the Planning Committee held on 14 October 2021 
 
 
Present  
 
Councillor: S Pond (Chairman) 
 
Councillors: A Williams (Vice-Chairman), D Ashcroft, D Evans, A Glass, S Hunt, 
P Langley, C Louisson, S Schillemore, E Woodard and K Budden (Reserve) 
 
 
40. Apologies for Absence  

 
Apologies were received from Cllrs I Thomas, M Johnson and Cllr J Matthews. 
 
Cllr Budden attended as a reserve. 
 
  
 

41. Confirmation of Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 26 August 2021 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 
  
 

42. Chairman's Announcements  
 
The Chairman welcomed all those present to the Planning Committee. In 
addition to the Councillors who sit on the committee. 
 
  
 

43. Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no Declarations of Interest from members of this meeting.  
 
  
 

44. Acceptance of Supplementary Matters  
 
Councillors present confirmed that they had received and read the 
Supplementary Matters Papers, which included information received since the 
agenda had been published. These were reported verbally at the meeting and 
were attached as Annex A. 
 
 
 

Page 9



  2 
Planning Committee 

(14.10.21) 
 
 

 

45. Future Items  
 
The committee agreed to visit the following sites should officers be mindful to 
permit: 
 

 51535/003 – Northbrook Estate, Farnham Road, Bentley, Farnham; 

 SDNP/21/03598/OUT – Oakfield, Love Lane, Petersfield, GU31 4BW; 
and 

 SDNP/21/04347/FUL – Trademark House, Ramshill, Petersfield, GU31 
4AT 

 
 

46. Report of the Director of Regeneration and Place  
 
The reports of the Director of Regeneration and Place were considered, and it 
was RESOLVED that: 
 

Application No., Site and Description  Resolution: 

 

SDNP/21/03209/HOUS 

 

The Longbarn, Russell Way, Petersfield 

Hampshire, GU31 4LD 

 

Conversion of the Longbarn garage at 

Mallards Mere into an artist studio and 

home office 

 

Approved subject to conditions as set out in 

Appendix A 

SDNP/21/03210/LIS 

 

The Longbarn, Russell Way, Petersfield 

Hampshire, GU31 4LD 

 

Listed building consent - Conversion of the 

Longbarn garage at Mallards Mere into an 

artist studio and home office 

 

Approved subject to conditions as set out in 

Appendix A. 

 
47. PART 2 - South Downs National Park - Applications and related planning 

matters to be determined or considered by the Council on behalf of the 
South Downs National Park Authority.  
 
  
 

48. SECTION 1 - APPLICATIONS REPORTED IN DETAIL 
 

49. SDNP/21/03209/HOUS  - The Longbarn, Russell Way, Petersfield, GU31 
4LD  
 

Page 10



  3 
Planning Committee 

(14.10.21) 
 
 

 

Conversion of the Longbarn garage at Mallards Mere into an artist studio and 
home office and also Listed Building Consent sought.  
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced both applications 
SDNP/21/03209/HOUS and SDNP/21/03210/LIS together and provided a 
presentation, which included photographs of the site, along with site layout 
plans of the proposal. Maps indicated the location of the site, south-east of 
Russell Way outside of the Settlement Policy Boundary of Petersfield but within 
the Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan area. Plans showed an outbuilding, 
situated approximately 10 metres east of the host dwelling.  
 
Descriptions were provided of the external works, which would create additional 
habitable floor space with the removal of two garage doors and replacement of 
a window and set of double doors. Internal works would create a bathroom and 
a kitchenette. The floor space would be used as an artist studio.   
 
The officer outlined the seven main planning issues considered in respect of 
the report and supplementary matters:  
 

 Principle of Development – The proposal would equate to an 13.62% 
increase in floorspace, in compliance with Policy SD31 of the SDNP 
Local Plan, although it would be necessary to impose a condition to 
ensure that the additional floorspace would be used in connection with 
the main dwelling, Mallards Mere.  
 

 Impact upon scale and character of dwelling and the local area – 
The proposed window and doors would be appropriately sized and 
materials would match those of the host building. The conversion and 
external alterations would not result in any negative impact upon the 
streetscene or the wider landscape.  

 

 Impact on the listed building – The Principal Conservation Officer had 
no objection to the proposal, providing the two conditions were imposed 
on the Listed Building Consent.  

 

 Impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties – There would be 
no adverse impact, as the building would be situated at least 40 metres 
away from the nearest neighbouring dwelling.   

  

 Ecology and biodiversity – It would be necessary to impose a 
condition to ensure that the water butt and bird box should be installed 
and retained thereafter.  

 

 Impact on highways – Although there would be a loss of a garage, at 
least 3 parking spaces would remain on the site. 

 

 Impact on South Downs National Park – A condition would need to be 
imposed in respect of Policy SD8, to ensure the scheme would not result 
in a negative impact upon the SDNP Dark Sky Reserve.  

Page 11



  4 
Planning Committee 

(14.10.21) 
 
 

 

 
The Senior Planning Officer recommended that both the household application 
and the listed building consent should be approved, subject to the conditions as 
set out in the report.  
 
The Chairman invited the committee to ask questions of the officer and debate 
both the applications.  
 
Clarification was sought as to whether the recommendation of the proposed 
condition, to ensure that the outbuilding would be used only in connection with 
the existing dwelling, would prevent the outbuilding from being rented out in any 
capacity. The Senior Planning Officer stated that at present the building was 
being used as an annexe and that the applicant had no intention of any other 
use apart from the proposed application.  
 
Clarification was also sought in respect of another recommended condition, to 
ensure the floorspace would be used solely in connection with the main 
dwelling. The Officer stated that records suggested that no floorspace additions 
had been made before it had become a listed building in 1973. The solicitor 
present stated that such a condition would remain enforceable for over 10 
years to ensure its use would be limited, and that although the two buildings 
could theoretically be sold separately in the future, any related condition would 
continue to be imposed. It was also confirmed that no condition could be added 
in relation to the listed building consent and its use.   
 
It was asked whether the inclusion specifically of a Swift bird box could be 
added in the condition to install one bird box. The Officer confirmed that she 
would relay the members’ request back to the Applicant and would thereby add 
an informative.  
 
The committee voted on the officer’s recommendation for approval of 
application SDNP/21/03209/HOUS, subject to the conditions listed on page 53 
of the Agenda, as set out within the report. 
 
Following the vote, the recommendation was declared CARRIED, 11 
Councillors voting FOR approval, no Councillors voting AGAINST approval and 
no Councillor ABSTAINING from voting.  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



  5 
Planning Committee 

(14.10.21) 
 
 

 

50. SDNP/21/03210/LIS - The Longbarn, Russell Way, Petersfield  
 
Conversion of the Longbarn garage at Mallards Mere into an artist studio and 
home office and also Listed Building Consent sought.  
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced both applications 
SDNP/21/03209/HOUS and SDNP/21/03210/LIS together and provided a 
presentation, which included photographs of the site, along with site layout 
plans of the proposal. Maps indicated the location of the site, south-east of 
Russell Way outside of the Settlement Policy Boundary of Petersfield but within 
the Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan area. Plans showed an outbuilding, 
situated approximately 10 metres east of the host dwelling.  
 
The committee voted on the officer’s recommendation for approval of 
application SDNP/21/03210/LIS, subject to the conditions listed on page 67 of 
the Agenda, as set out within the report. 
 
Following the vote, the recommendation was declared CARRIED, 11 
Councillors voting FOR approval, no Councillors voting AGAINST approval and 
no Councillor ABSTAINING from voting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 

The meeting commenced at 6.00 pm and concluded at 6.45 pm 
 
 

………………… 
Chairman 

Page 13



Annex A 

14 October 2021 
Planning Committee 
 
Supplementary Matters to be considered as part of Planning Officer's Report on 
Planning Applications. 
 

S1  Item  1 

 
SDNP/21/03209/HOUS and 
SDNP/21/03210/LIS 

The Longbarn, Russell Way, Petersfield, 

Hampshire, GU31 4LD 

 

 

 
The Monitoring Officer confirms that this proposal has been dealt with in accordance 
with the Council’s procedures for handling planning proposals submitted by or on 
behalf of Council Members and Staff. 
 
Since publishing the agenda, the following section has been added to the Officer 
Report for SDNP/21/03209/HOUS: 
 

6. Highway implications 
 
Policy SD22 of the Local Plan seeks to ensure that proposals do not result in any 
negative impact upon the highway.  
 
The SDNP Vehicle Parking Standards seeks to ensure that there is adequate 
parking to serve development.  
 
The proposal would result in the loss of the garage. There would, however, remain 
sufficient space within the site for over 3 vehicles to park. There would also remain 
sufficient space for vehicles to enter and leave the site in a forward facing gear. 
 
For the above reasons, the conversion would not result in any negative impact 
upon the highway, in accordance with Policy SD22 and the SDNP Vehicle Parking 
Standards. 
 

 

Page 6

Minute Item 44.

Page 14



 

Part 2 
 
 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Applications determined by the Council on behalf  
of the South Downs National Park Authority  

 
APPENDIX A 

 
14 October 2021 

 

 

PROPOSAL Conversion of the Longbarn garage at Mallards Mere into an 
artist studio and home office 

LOCATION: The Longbarn, Russell Way, Petersfield, Hampshire, GU31 4LD 

REFERENCE NO: SDNP/21/03209/HOUS  

 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 
 

Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 (as amended).  

 
2. The floorspace hereby permitted shall be used solely in connection with the 
main dwelling on the site (currently known as ‘Mallards Mere’) and shall not be used 
or occupied separately or severed thereafter. 
 

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the local area and to ensure that the 

outbuilding is used only in connection with the existing dwelling. 

 
3. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, a minimum 
of one water butt and one bird box shall be installed within the site. The water butt 
and bird box shall be installed as per manufacturer's instructions and shall be 
installed within the site retained and maintained thereafter. 
 
Reason:  To protect and enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policies SD2 and 

SD9 of the SDNP Local Plan. 

 
4. Prior to development above slab level, details of mitigation methods (in 
accordance with the SDNP Dark Skies Guidance) for the floor to eaves glazing on 
the doors on the northern elevation, must be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The mitigation method agreed by the Local 
Planning Authority shall be permanently used and maintained thereafter. 

Page 7

Minute Item 47.

Page 15



 
Reason:  To protect the character of the countryside, and the designated International 

Dark Night Reserve, which is part of the special quality of the South Downs National 

Park, in accordance with National Park Purposes and the National Planning Policy 

Framework 2021. 

 
5. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the plans listed below under the heading "Plans Referred to in Consideration of this 
Application". 
 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 
Informative: 

 
1. The applicant is encouraged to install a swift nestbox on the site. Please follow 

this link for additional informatioin: https://www.rspb.org.uk/birds-and-
wildlife/wildlife-guides/bird-a-z/swift-family/ 
 

PROPOSAL Listed building consent - Conversion of the Longbarn 
garage at Mallards Mere into an artist studio and home office 

LOCATION: The Longbarn, Russell Way, Petersfield, Hampshire, GU31 4LD 

REFERENCE NO: SDNP/21/03210/LIS  

 
1. The works hereby consented shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this consent. 
 

Reason:  To comply with Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended). 

 
2. All new works and making good of the retained fabric whether internal or 
external, shall be finished to match the adjacent work with regard to the methods 
used and to material, colour, texture, profile and style. 
 

Reason - To safeguard the architectural and historic character of the Listed Building 

or to ensure the detailing and materials maintain the architectural interest of the 

building. 

 
3. Notwithstanding the approved plans, the development hereby permitted shall 
not be commenced until detailed drawings of the windows and doors have been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the local planning authority . The details to 
comprise:- 
a) Plans to clearly identify the window and door in question and its location within the 

property. 

b) 1:20 elevation and plan; 1:5 section and full size glazing bar detail. The details to 

include the position of the window within the opening (depth of reveal) and method of 

fixing the glazing (putty or beading) 

Page 8Page 16

https://www.rspb.org.uk/birds-and-wildlife/wildlife-guides/bird-a-z/swift-family/
https://www.rspb.org.uk/birds-and-wildlife/wildlife-guides/bird-a-z/swift-family/


c) The materials used, method of opening and finishes. 

The works shall be carried out in full accordance with such approval and be retained 

thereafter. 

 

Reason - In order to safeguard the building's special architectural and historic 

interest. It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as 

these details need to be agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus 

go to the heart of the planning permission. 

 

Page 9Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
4 November 2021 

 
POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE / SITE VISIT 

 
 
 
The following items are for INFORMATION purposes only.  They comprise major 
applications that have either been submitted some time ago but are still not yet ready for 
consideration or are recently received applications that are not ready to be considered by 
the Committee or determined under the Scheme of Delegation.  The purpose of this report 
is to highlight the receipt of these applications to ensure that any issues that they raise are 
highlighted at an early stage.  Councillors may also suggest possible future site visits under 
this item. 
 
Where a site visit is requested, this does not automatically refer the item to Planning 
Committee for decision as there are other mechanisms in the Council’s Constitution to do 
this. 
 

 Reference Description and Address 

1 59329 
 
 
 
 

1) Creation of habitat piles and hibernacula (structures for 
reptiles and amphibians to hibernate in) in the form of low 
bunds, using silt from the adjacent pond and logs from 
adjacent tree felling. These bunds will be approximately 1m at 
their highest point, 5m wide and, in total, extending to up to 
80m, depending on the volume of material gained from the 
pond. 2) Creation of a shallow wetland feature (approx. 
100m^2) by regrading the bank of the pond at its southeast 
corner. 3) Replacing the existing boardwalk and 
viewing/dipping platforms and upgrading the existing walkway 
around the pond. 4) Installing a water inlet structure at the 
west end of the pond to control water and trap silt. 
 
Knox's Pond at Deadwater Valley Nature Reserve, Conde 
Way, Bordon 
 
This application has only just recently been submitted and 
consultations and notifications are under way.  It is too early 
to make any decision as to how this application will be 
determined. 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21



 

PART 1 

 
 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE 

 

Applications to be determined by the 
Council as the Local Planning Authority 

 
4 November 2021 

 

SECTION 1 – SCHEDULE OF APPLICATION RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

   

Item No.: 01 
 

The information, recommendations and advice contained in this report are correct as at the 
date of preparation, which is more than one week in advance of the Committee meeting. 
Because of the time constraints some reports may have been prepared in advance of the final 
date given for consultee responses or neighbour comments.  Any changes or necessary 
updates to the report will be made orally at the Committee meeting. 

 

PROPOSAL Retrospective application - Change of use of grazing field to car park 
including siting of a porta cabin for staff (as amended by plans 
received 6 and 16 September 2021). 

LOCATION: Land South of Passfield Mill Business Park, Mill Lane, Passfield, Liphook 

REFERENCE  55824/001 PARISH: Bramshott/Liphook 

APPLICANT:  AMK Chauffeur Drive 

CONSULTATION 
EXPIRY: 

30 September 2021 

APPLICATION EXPIRY: 23 April 2021 

COUNCILLOR(S): Councillor A B L Glass, Councillor B Mouland, Councillor N 
Sear 

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION 

 

Page 22



This application has been included on the agenda at the request of Councillor Williams who 
has raised concerns regarding the ecological impacts of the development and the impact 
upon the Conservation Area. 
 
Site and Development 
 
Site 
 
The application relates to a field which adjoins, and lies to the south west of, Passfield 
Business Park. The site is owned by ‘AMK Chauffeur Drive’, which currently operates its 
business from a service yard within Passfield Business Park.  The field is accessed from 
within the business park. 
 
The site subject to the following designations/constraints: 

 Lies outside of any Settlement Policy Boundary and thus within a countryside location 
 

 Lies adjacent to the River Wey Conservation Area which borders the site. 
 

 Lies in close proximity to parts of the Wealden Heaths Phase II Special Protection Area 
(SPA). 

 

 Lies in close proximity the Woolmer Forest Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI),  
 

 Lies within an SSSI Impact Risk Zone.  
 
Development  
 
Permission was originally sought for the retention of a large car park and portacabin which 
had already been constructed on the site without the benefit of planning permission.  The car 
park was created by the removal of the top soil and laying 200mm of hard core.  However, 
amended plans were submitted at the request of Officers, reducing the depth of the proposed 
car park by 10 metres to accommodate further drainage and landscaping, and to relocate the 
portacabin to the western side of the car park to reduce its landscape impact. 
 
The parking area and portacabin would continue to be used by the applicant (AMK Chauffeur 
Drive) only. 
 
No external lighting is proposed. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
22068/12 -  Erection of vehicle storage building.  Permission granted 27/6/89 
22068/031 -  Retrospective change of use of existing building to a mixed use of b2 & b8, 

retention of parking area and proposed extension for storage and industrial use 
with part first floor for office use.  Permission 1998. 

 

Page 23



Development Plan Policies and Proposals 
 
The Draft version of the Local Plan (2017 -2036) was published under Regulation 18 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations (2012) for public 
consultation from 5 February to 19 March 2019. Paragraph 48 of the NPPF (2021) sets out 
the circumstances when emerging planning policies may be given weight in determining 
planning applications. Based on the current early stage of preparation, the draft Local Plan 
policies are currently afforded no weight.  
 
East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy (2014) 
 
CP1 -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development  
CP2 -  Spatial Strategy 
CP6 -  Rural economy and enterprise 
CP19 -  Development in the countryside 
CP20 -  Landscape 
CP21 –  Biodiversity 
CP25 –  Flood risk 
CP27 -  Pollution 
CP29 -  Design 
CP30 -  Historic Environment 
CP31 –  Transport 
CP32 –  Infrastructure 
 
East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review (2006) 
 
HE8 -  Development affecting the setting of a conservation area 
IB3 -  Industrial or Business Development in the Countryside 
 
East Hampshire District Council Local Plan (Part 2): Housing and Employment Allocations 
(2016) 
 
The East Hampshire District Local Plan (Part 2): Housing and Employment Allocations was 
adopted by the Council on the 7th April 2016.  The site does not constitute an allocation in 
this plan. 
 
East Hampshire District Council Vehicle Parking Standards - Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) (2018) 
 
East Hampshire District Council Planning Contributions and Community Infrastructure Levy - 
(SPD) 
 
Planning Policy Constraints and Guidance 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) July 2021 
 

Page 24



In this instance the following sections of the NPPF are considered to be particularly relevant 
to the consideration of the development; 
 
2. Achieving sustainable development 
6. Building a strong and competitive economy  
9. Promoting sustainable transport 
12. Achieving well-designed places 
14. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change 
15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment  
16. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment  
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 
Consultations and Town/Parish Council comments 
 
EHDC Conservation Officer - Objection on the grounds that the works are harmful to the 
setting of the Conservation Area however also advises that in weighing the planning balance, 
Officers need to be convinced the identified harm has sufficient justification. Should 
permission be granted, a suitably worded landscaping condition is recommended. 
 
EHDC Drainage Engineer – No objection, subject to an appropriate drainage condition being 
attached to any approval. 
 
EHDC Landscape Officer - Objection on landscape grounds due to the permanent detrimental 
effect that this development will have on the landscape character of this former meadow. The 
scale of the intervention and potential for environmental harm also contributes to the 
objection. The development is in contravention to the Landscape Character Assessment 
(LCA) which states that the management considerations should be to conserve areas of 
pasture and the intimate stream corridors. 
 
Despite the reduction in size of the car park area and bunding the location and revised 
development proposals are still intrusive in the landscape and against the planning guidelines 
in the LCA. 
 
EHDC Environmental Health (pollution) – No objection, subject to a condition being attached 
to any approval restricting the hours of use of the site in order to prevent noise nuisance. 
 
EHDC Arboricultural Officer - No objection and no conditions requested. 
 
Natural England - No Objection subject to conditions being attached to any approval 
restricting the use of the site to AMK Chauffeur Business only and requiring details of 
measures to prevent the site being used for general parking by members of the public in order 
to restrict access to the Woolmer Forest Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) (which forms 
part of the Wealden Heaths Phase II SPA). 
 

Page 25



HCC Ecologist – No objection subject to a condition being attached to any approval securing 
the mitigation measures as detailed within the submitted Ecological Impact Assessment. 
 
HCC Highway Authority – No objection and no conditions requested. 
 
Headley Parish Council - Object to this retrospective application for the following reasons: 
 
i. The construction of a car park, and the siting of a porta cabin in the countryside is contrary 
to Policy CP19. 
ii. Wholly support the EHDC Conservation Section’s strong reasons for Objection as 
summarised in their Objection and Recommendation. 
iii. The site adjoins the River Wey Conservation Area, is within 100m of the River Wey, 400m 
of the SPA and there is an SSSI in close proximity to the south of the site. 
iv. The present boundaries of the former Passfield Mill (the former 17th Century Paper Mill) 
are surrounded by countryside (paddocks) to the south and the River Wey and countryside to 
the north. This car park has  
 encroached onto the adjoining countryside and would lead to pressure to expand the 
industrial estate. 
v. The agent correctly states that "The draft Local Plan has been the subject of an initial 
consultation, but it is at too early a stage to have any weight in the determination of this 
application". We would agree with  
 this view and request that no weight is given to LAA/LIP-028 which refers to the "grazing 
field" the subject of this retrospective application. 
vi. Notwithstanding the above, the applicants have not explained the need for the porta cabin 
when the company has nearby facilities for their drivers. 
vii That if permission should be granted, it should be on the basis that the porta cabin is 
placed within the existing industrial site complex and not on the field. 
viii No run-off from the field or car park should be allowed to enter the River Wey. 
 
Representations 
 
Twenty three letters of objection, from nineteen addresses, have been received and raising 
objections on the following grounds: 
 
a)  The land is adjacent to the Wey Conservation Area and to Hatch Farm Water Meadows, 

an ancient land cultivation system that is supported by its owners and the River Wey 
Trust; 

b)  Loss of beautiful water meadows; 
c)  Harm to protected wildlife; 
d)  Harmful to biodiversity of the locality; 
e)  Increased flood risk; 
f)  Run off of water into the River Wey; 
g)  Loss of privacy to neighbouring properties; 
h)  Increase of anti-social behaviour; 
i)  Site notice was not displayed on the land until 12 January 2021; 
 

Page 26



j)  Harmful to conservation area, contrary to Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and Saved Policy HE8 of the Local Plan 2006; 

k)  Harmful to walker’s enjoyment of the footpaths; 
l)  Noise, light and air pollution; 
m)  Detracts from the character and appearance of the conservation area; 
n)  Enough harm has been done, AMK should restore the field to grazing land immediately; 
o)  Characterisation of the land in the application as 'relatively flat' is misleading - again, this 

is an encroachment off the valley floor occupied by the industrial site and onto the 
sloping valley side grassland; 

p)  This change of use would stand in direct contradiction to the NPPF's environmental 
objective which includes; 

q)  Highway safety; 
r)  Pollution of River Wey; 
s)  The River Wey Trust objects to this planning application, because of the harmful affects 

that the car park will have on the natural environment, and in particular the increased 
risk of pollution to the nearby River Wey; 

t)  The Biodiversity Checklist contains errors; 
 
[Officer note – full ecological surveys were submitted which superseded the biodiversity check 
list.] 
 
u)  The site is in an area of Special Protection for wildlife nesting birds; 
v)  The plans submitted do not accurately reflect the works already undertaken on the site; 
 
[Officer note – the application is not seeking permission for all the works which have already 
been undertaken.] 
 
w)  Increase traffic to the area will be hazardous to other road users; 
x)  Despite the applicant's mention of the NPPF objectives for sustainable growth, this 

change of use would stand in direct contradiction to the NPPF's environmental objective; 
y)  It contravenes EHDC Joint Core Strategy CP6, CP21, CP25 and CP28 and EHDC 

Countryside & Heritage Plan Chapter 3, articles 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.107, in addition to Policy 
HE8; 

z)  AMK does not need to be based in Passfield to benefit local employment; 
za)  Still object to this on the grounds of increased traffic, noise and emission pollution, 

industrialisation of the countryside and the fact that this is a retrospective application; 
zb)  Ecological Impact Assessment Report continues to state that the River Wey is 0.5km 

east of the application site;   
 
[Officer note – an amended Ecological Impact Assessment Report was submitted, and all 
relevant consultees were re consulted.] 
 
zc)  Updated Drainage Strategy proposes an attenuated discharge to a watercourse which 

itself drains into the River Wey. 
 
 

Page 27



[Officer note – the EHDC Drainage Engineer has advised that there would be no surface run 
off into the River Wey.] 
 
zd)  Previous strong objections still stand; and 
ze)  Hours of use condition will not prevent disturbance. 
 
Ten letters of support, from ten addresses, have been received and expressing support on 
the following grounds:  
 
a)  Support application as the positives of the development far outweigh the negatives; 
b)  AMK are a longstanding well run business and have always been based in the Parish of 

Bramshott and Liphook and it should be supported; 
c)  Good to see a local company expanding and staying local in these difficult times; 
d)  AMK is a local business employing large amounts of local people and providing 

essential services to the local community; 
e)  The approval of this application will clearly enable this business to continue to grow; and 
f)  AMK is a successful local transport company and is one of the largest employers in the 

area. 
 
Determining Issues 
 
1. Principle of development  
2. Landscape impact 
3. Impact upon the setting of the River Wey Conservation Area 
4. Ecology  
5. Neighbour amenity  
6. Drainage  
7. Highway and access considerations  
8. Infrastructure  
 
Planning Considerations  
 
1. Principle of development 
 
As required by section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, 
applications must be determined in line with the adopted development plan for the area, 
unless material considerations apply.  The development plan for EHDC comprises the 'saved' 
policies of the EHDC Local Plan: Second Review (2006), the policies set out in the Local 
Plan: Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2014), and the Local Plan: Housing and Employment 
Allocations (2016).  Material considerations in respect of national planning policy are the 
NPPF and the National Planning Policy Guidance. 
 
The site lies outside of any Settlement Policy Boundary and thus within a countryside 
location. The adopted Employment Allocations Plan does not include the site as an allocation 
of the plan. 
 

Page 28



Whilst the site adjoins a light industrial/commercial site, the site is greenfield land and in 
falling outside of any SPB, is regarded as countryside for the purposes of applying the 
strategic approach to development set out in the JCS and saved Local Plan policies.  In 
particular, that of policies CP1, CP2, CP10, CP19, and IB3 respectively. 
 
These policies operate a policy of general restraint in order to protect the countryside and 
seek to focus development in more sustainable locations.  These policies are consistent with 
the NPPF which notes that Planning should recognise the intrinsic character and beauty of 
the countryside.  A proposal, if it harms the character and appearance of the countryside, 
would conflict with these policies and mean that the development would not amount to 
Sustainable Development as referred to in the NPPF. 
 
Policy CP1 of the JCS applies to development within the Settlement Policy Boundary (SPB), 
where there is a presumption in favour of development.   
 
Policy CP2 identifies a sustainable hierarchy of SPBs and sets out five levels of sustainable 
settlements (rated level ‘1-5’, with ‘1’ being market towns and the most sustainable locations 
for new development and ‘5’ being rural villages/hamlets and the least sustainable locations 
due to their often limited services).  The site lies within Passfield, which has no SPB and is 
categorised as having the lowest sustainability level of location.   
 
Since the site lies outside of any SPB and is, therefore, within a countryside location, it should 
be assessed against JCS policies CP6, CP19, and saved policy IB3, which only permit new 
commercial development subject to certain criteria.   
 
JCS policy CP6 states that development will be permitted for the reasonable extension of 
existing firms in the countryside and new small scale employment uses within the settlement 
policy boundaries of rural settlements provided that they do not harm the character of the site 
or its surroundings or do not adversely affect natural beauty, wildlife, cultural heritage and 
opportunities for recreation. 
 
Saved policy IB3 states that: 
 
‘Planning permission for industrial or business development in the countryside will not be 
permitted unless it is for the reasonable expansion or intensification of an established 
industrial or business use within an existing site, provided it would not: 
 
a. result in an over-intensification of use on the site; 
 
b. harm the character or appearance of the site or of the countryside; 
 
c. generate traffic of a type or amount inappropriate to rural roads or, requires 
improvements which would harm the character of rural roads in the area, particularly sunken 
lanes;  
 
d. harm the amenity enjoyed by occupiers of nearby properties; or 

Page 29



 
e. lead to excessive use of the car.’ 
 
Para. 84 of the NPPF states the following: 
 
‘84. Planning policies and decisions should enable: 
 
a) the sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business in rural areas, both through 
conversion of existing buildings and well-designed new buildings; 
 
b) the development and diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural businesses; 
 
c) sustainable rural tourism and leisure developments which respect the character 
of the countryside; and 
 
d) the retention and development of accessible local services and community facilities, such 
as local shops, meeting places, sports venues, open space, cultural buildings, public houses 
and places of worship’. 
 
The proposed development, within the countryside, would comply in principle with the 
exception criteria contained within policies CP19 / CP6, since the additional parking provision 
and portacabin have a genuine and proven need for a countryside location since the proposal 
would enable, and form part of, the expansion of an existing, well-established business.   
 
The submitted Planning Statement advises that AMK Chauffeur Drive is seeking to expand its 
existing business at Passfield Business Park by increasing its staff number from 
approximately 300 to 500 members of staff, and which would increase the number of 
chauffeur vehicles required.  To accommodate this increase in staff and vehicles, the 
business needs to increase its parking provision.  Currently there are 180 parking spaces 
within the Passfield Business Park for AMK Chauffeur Drive and the proposed car park could 
provide a further 120 parking spaces.  The portacabin within the car park is required to 
provide a teaching facility and consideration had been given to relocating the portacabin to 
within Passfield Business Park, however, there is insufficient space within the existing site 
which AMK occupies to accommodate it.   
 
The Planning Statement confirms that AMK Chauffeur Drive have considered other available 
locations however, purpose-built sites such as the one AMK currently occupy are very difficult 
to find as the ratio of building floor space to car parking provision does not allow for such a 
business operation of this size.  As such, AMK are seeking to expand its existing business 
and effectively ‘future proof’ the current site to allow the continued growth of the business at 
Passfield.  
 
 
 
 

Page 30



If the application were to be approved, it is considered appropriate to attach conditions 
restricting the use of the site and portacabin for the use of AMK Chauffeur Drive only and 
requiring that should AMK Chauffeur Drive cease to require the use of the site and 
portacabin, the portacabin shall be removed and the land reinstated to its former (landscaped) 
condition within one month of the cessation of any use. 
 
On balance, the principle of the proposed development is considered acceptable and to be in 
accordance with the general aims of policies CP6 and CP19 of the JCS, saved policy IB3, 
and the provisions of the NPPF subject to all other material considerations, discussed further 
below in this report.  
 
2. Landscape impact 
 
Joint Core Strategy policy CP19 is a policy of general restraint on development in the 
countryside in order to 'protect the countryside for its own sake.' The landscape specific JCS 
policy CP20, states that the special characteristics of the district's natural environment will be 
conserved and enhanced. It requires proposals to protect and enhance local distinctiveness, 
sense of place and tranquillity, protect and enhance settlements in their wider landscape 
setting and protect and enhance natural and historic features. The NPPF advocates a similar 
approach of protecting and enhancing landscapes.  
 
The EHDC Landscape Officer has raised an objection to the proposal on the grounds of the 
landscape impact of the works and insufficient mitigation proposed.   
 
The visual impacts arising from the development would result from the portacabin, parked 
vehicles, and hardstanding, as well as the proposed bunds and hedgerow/tree screening. 
Landscaping details submitted with the scheme confirm that additional screening could be 
provided to minimise the visual impact of the development within the landscape. However, 
even once matured, there would likely be filtered glimpses of parked vehicles and the 
portacabin from public vantage points. 
 
Whilst the appearance of the built form and use of the car park could be lessened with 
landscaping, the car park and portacabin would result in harm to the landscape character of 
this area due to the loss of the former meadow and the introduction of a permanent urban 
feature.   
 
On balance, it is considered that the landscape harm can be appropriately mitigated through 
the attachment of appropriate conditions to any approval requiring details of the proposed 
landscaping on the most sensitive boundaries to be submitted to, and approved in writing, by 
the LPA within one month of any approval and that the portacabin be painted a dark colour 
within the month of any approval, the details of which to be first submitted to, and approved in 
writing by the LPA.  The use of sensitive surfacing for the car park would also soften the 
appearance of the development within the landscape, as such, it is also considered 
appropriate to require details of surfacing to be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the 
LPA within one month of any approval.   
 

Page 31



Subject to the appropriate conditions being attached to any approval, the proposed 
development would comply with the aims of JCS policies CP19 and CP20. 
 
3. Impact upon the setting of the River Wey Conservation Area 
 
Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires 
planning authorities, when considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a Conservation Area, to have special regard to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character and appearance of that area. 
 
Policy CP30 of the JCS requires development proposals to conserve or enhance the District's 
historic environment, including listed buildings and conservation areas. Saved policy HE8 of 
the Local Plan states that development outside of a conservation area will not be permitted if 
it would harm the setting or views into or out of it.  
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the policies that the Council must 
take into account when determining planning applications. The 'Historic Environment Good 
Practice Advice in Planning Note 2, states at paragraph 4:  'The significance of a heritage 
asset is the sum of its archaeological, architectural, historic, and artistic interest' and provides 
at paragraphs 8, 9 and 10 that in order for the Local Planning Authority to make decisions in 
line with legal requirements, the objectives of the development plan; and, the policy 
requirements of the NPPF, great importance is placed on understanding the nature, extent 
and level of the significance of the heritage asset. 
 
Chapter 16 of the NPPF sets out the core principles relating to development affecting 
Heritage Assets that local planning authorities should consider in making planning decisions.   
Paragraph 200 of the NPPF states any harm to the significance of a designated heritage 
asset (including from development within its setting) should require clear and convincing 
justification.  The benefits in this instance would be the economic benefits of the retention and 
creation of local employment.  
 
The EHDC Conservation Officer has raised an objection to the proposal on the following 
grounds   
 
‘The River Wey Conservation Area was designated in order to protect the series of 18th 
Century aquaducts and surrounding extensive water meadow system. As noted in the 
Conservation Area Appraisal published by EHDC, the Conservation Area is unusual in that it 
has few historic buildings and therefore the CA was designated because the river, valley 
setting and C18th aquaducts combine to create a historic landscape worthy of protection. 
 
The premises to which this application relates forms part of an industrial park within the 
Conservation Area. The proposed car park is to the south of the industrial park, over the 
boundary to the Conservation Area. The works represent an incursion of built form into an 
arable field surrounding the Conservation Area, comprising a large car park and porta cabin. 
 

Page 32



The fields that form the Conservation Area and its surrounding area are an important 
contributor to its character and setting. Therefore, to cover a field adjacent to the 
Conservation Area with a large expanse of hardstanding for the parking of vehicles is 
detrimental to the verdant character of the Conservation Area and its setting. The harm is 
two-fold, both from the physical alteration of the ground by laying hardstanding; and the 
vehicular activity facilitated by the development. Policy HE8 states that Planning permission 
for development outside a Conservation Area will not be granted if it would harm its setting or 
views into or out of it.  The works are harmful to the setting of the Conservation Area’. 
 
In line with the provisions of the NPPF, the EHDC Conservation Officer does however 
consider the ‘planning balance’ of the proposed development when assessing the potential 
harm to the setting of the conservation area against the public benefits of the development 
and concludes as follows: 
 
‘Paragraph 200 of the NPPF states: 'Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated 
heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), 
should require clear and convincing justification'.  
 
Therefore, in weighing the planning balance, we need to be convinced the identified harm has 
sufficient justification. Should permission be granted, a suitably worded landscaping condition 
is recommended.’ 
 
For the reasons given in this report, it is considered that in this instance, ‘on balance’, the 
public benefits to be gained from the proposal (the retention of an existing, well-established 
business within the District and the additional employment to be facilitated by the proposal) 
out-weigh the potential harm to the setting of the conservation area. It is also considered that 
any harm can be sufficiently mitigated through appropriate conditions attached to any 
approval requiring details of landscaping to be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the 
LPA prior to first occupation of the development and that the portacabin be painted in a dark 
colour (details of which to be first submitted to, and approved in writing, by the LPA) within 
one month of any approval. 
 
Subject to the appropriate conditions being attached to any approval, the proposal would on 
balance, comply with the aims of JCS policy CP30, saved policy HE8, Section 72 of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, and the provisions of the 
NPPF. 
 
4. Ecology 
 
Policy CP21 of the JCS requires that development proposals maintain, enhance and protect 
the District’s biodiversity and its surrounding environment. 
 
The development lies close to parts of Woolmer Forest Site of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSI) and sits within the SSSI Impact Risk Zone. As such, Natural England were also 
consulted, and raised no objection, subject to the conditions relating to the use of the non-
public use of the car park and non-residential use of the porta cabin.  

Page 33



The site is also in close proximity to parts of the Wealden Heaths Phase II Special Protection 
Area (SPA), parts of Woolmer Forest Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and sits within 
the SSSI Impact Risk Zone.  
 
Following concerns raised by the HCC Ecologist, Ecological Impact Assessments (EIA) were 
submitted, and the HCC Ecologist has commented as follows:  
 
‘The EIA sets out that site was visited in March 2021 and an assessment made of the 
composition and value of on-site habitats and their potential to support populations of 
protected and notable species. Details were provided of the likely effects of the vegetation 
clearance that has previously taken place.  
 
A review of historical OS mapping concluded that it would appear that the site had been 
relatively unchanged in over 100 years, with the site boundaries remaining consistent. It is 
therefore highly likely that the field has been grazed pasture for a considerable period of time. 
The cessation of grazing, at an unknown time, will have created a more tussocky sward as 
described in the ecological assessment. The plant species list as described in the ecological 
assessment is indicative of an improved pasture and this would fit with the assumed history of 
the site. As such the site is not botanically rich and that the retained areas of grassland are 
likely to be consistent with the areas already lost. The development has resulted in the loss of 
a section of the northern hedgerow. This hedge is described as being ‘outgrown’ and 
containing typical tree and shrub species. Some previous tree removal has occurred.  
 
In terms of protected and notable species, it is apparent that the field is/was suitable reptile 
habitat. Whilst it is agreed that the formerly grazed grassland was probably unsuitable, the 
current habitat (tussocky grassland, bracken edges) is certainly suitable. The northern 
hedgerow is certainly a suitable nesting habitat for bird species.  
 
The site is in close proximity to parts of the Wealden Heaths Phase II Special Protection Area 
(SPA). It is agreed that the site itself does not comprise optimal habitat for the three bird species 
associated with the SPA. However, there is an issue with further encroachment towards the 
SPA boundaries (this development is within c.200m of the SPA) and the dilution of the buffering 
effect of surrounding undeveloped land. Nightjars in particular will use areas of permanent 
pasture surrounding the SPA, with those habitats acting as useful supporting habitat used for 
e.g. foraging/commuting.  
 
In summary, it is agreed that the habitat on site is generally of low ecological value, and that 
impacts are likely to have been confined to the site-level, there is clearly an issue with semi-
natural habitat having been removed without any ecological considerations: habitat has been 
lost and protected species will have been affected. The development has occurred within 
proximity to internationally and nationally designated sites and is within the Impact Risk Zone 
for Woolmer Forest SSSI.  
 
 
 

Page 34



The retained areas of the site can be managed in a way that would ameliorate the likely 
ecological impacts. Management of the remaining grassland would be beneficial, as would 
bolstering of the retained hedgerow boundaries. The ecological assessment includes long 
term grassland management methods, and a 5 year management plan for the site”. 
 
Having regard to the above, whilst it is acknowledged that the works which have been 
undertaken so far would have resulted in the loss of habitats and this would have affected 
protected species, the application presents an opportunity to secure mitigation measures 
which would prevent the current proposal resulting in ecological harm and would secure long 
term ecological enhancements.  
 
As such, subject to conditions to secure mitigation measures and uses, the proposal would 
comply with policies CP6 and CP21 of the JCS. 
 
5. Neighbour amenity 
 
Policy CP27 of the JCS requires that developments would not have an unacceptable impact 
on the amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring properties through loss of privacy or 
excessive overshadowing.  Policy CP29 criterion (d) requires development to be sympathetic 
to its setting in terms of scale, height, massing and density, and its relationship to adjoining 
buildings, spaces around buildings and landscape features.  Section 12 Paragraph 130(f) of 
the NPPF requires that places should be created with a high standard of amenity for existing 
and future users. 
The closest neighbouring residential property to the site is 5 Mill Lane, whose rear boundary 
is located approximately 10m from the site. 
 
In response to concerns raised by Officers regarding potential noise disturbance, the 
portacabin has been relocated approximately 80 metres from the rear garden boundary of 
no.5.  The EHDC Environmental Health (Pollution) Officer has not raised any objection to the 
development subject to a condition being attached to any approval restricting the hours of use 
of the car park.    It is also appropriate to attach a condition to any approval restricting the use 
of the car park and portacabin for the use of AMK Chauffeur Drive only in the interests of the 
amenities of the occupiers of the nearest residential dwelling.   
 
Subject to the appropriate conditions being attached to any approval, the proposal would 
comply with the aims of policies CP27 and CP29 of the JCS. 
 
6. Drainage 
 
CP25 of the JCS states that development in areas at risk of flooding will be permitted 
provided that the proposal demonstrates that the development, including any access/es, not 
increase flooding elsewhere. 
 
The EHDC Drainage Consultant has not raised any objection to the development subject to a 
condition being attached to any approval requiring the development to be implemented in 
accordance with the submitted Drainage Strategy.   

Page 35



Subject to the appropriate condition being attached to any approval, the proposal would 
comply with the aims of policy CP25 of the JCS. 
 
7. Highway and access considerations 
 
Policy CP31 of the JCS requires that regard is had to any impact on the safety and 
convenience of the public highway.  
 
The access to Passfield Mill Business Park is to remain as existing via the B3004 and the car 
park would be accessed from within the Business Park.  The County Highway Authority has 
not raised any objection to the development and has advised that it is satisfied that the 
development would not result in a detrimental impact on highway safety or operation.  
 
It is appropriate to attach conditions to any approval restricting the use of the parking area to 
the use of AMK Chauffeur Drive only, so that a public car parking facility is not established, 
and requiring details of measures to prevent the use of the parking area by members of the 
public to be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the LPA. Should the parking area no 
longer be required by AMK Chauffeur Drive, the condition would require the land to be 
reinstated to its former (landscaped) condition within one month of the cessation of its use.  
 
Subject to the appropriate conditions being attached to any approval, the proposal is 
compliant with the aims of policy CP31 of the JCS. 
 
8. Infrastructure 
 
JCS policy CP32 states that where the provision or improvement of infrastructure is 
necessary to meet community or environmental needs associated with new development or to 
mitigate the impact of development on the environment, the payment of financial contributions 
will be required through planning obligations and/or the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
to ensure that all such development makes an appropriate and reasonable contribution to the 
costs of provision. 
 
EHDC CIL was adopted on the 8th April 2016.  This enables the Council to raise, and pool, 
contributions from developers to help fund additional infrastructure required to support new 
development including roads, schools, green spaces and community facilities.  EHDC CIL 
replaces Section 106 agreements as the principal means by which pooled developer 
contributions towards providing the necessary infrastructure are collected as set out in the 
adopted ‘Planning Contributions and Community Infrastructure Levy’ Supplementary Planning 
Document, which provides further details on the Council’s CIL Charging Schedule and other 
developer contributions.   
 
If approved, the development would not be CIL liable because it would not result in the 
creation of residential, retail or tourist accommodation for which is CIL liable. 
 
 
 

Page 36



Response to Parish Council Comments 
 
Headley Parish Council has objected to the development on a number of grounds, all of which 
have been covered in the above report. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The NPPF advocates a presumption in favour of sustainable development and as such, any 
adverse impacts of a proposal would need to significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits. 
 
The site lies outside of any Settlement Policy Boundary thus is in a countryside location, and 
where there is a presumption against new commercial development other than in certain 
policy circumstances.   The site adjoins an established commercial estate, hosting a range of 
uses.  The site is not included in the adopted Allocations Plan however there is an on balance 
justification for the development in policy terms.  JCS policy CP6 advises that development 
will be permitted for the reasonable extension of existing firms in the countryside provided that 
development does not harm the character of the site or its surroundings, or adversely affect 
natural beauty, wildlife, cultural heritage and opportunities for recreation.  Policy IB3 also 
allows for industrial or business development within the countryside subject to certain criteria.  
As such, the principle of the development is accepted, subject to an assessment of the details 
of the scheme. 
 
The application has demonstrated that the development could be achieved in such a way that 
would preserve the character and appearance of the Conservation Area, that it would not 
result in a detrimental impact on protected species and the SSSI, that it would not result in a 
detrimental impact on the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining and surrounding properties, 
and that it would not result in a detrimental impact on foul and surface water drainage, or on 
highway/pedestrian considerations, subject to the appropriate conditions being attached to 
any consent.   
 
In light of the above, the principle of development is, accepted on this site and that the 
development would be sustainable having regard to the provisions of the NPPF, the relevant 
policies of the Development Plan and Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  
 
RECOMMENDATION PERMISSION subject to the following conditions. 
 
1 Within three months of this permission the drainage for the site shall be 

constructed and maintained thereafter in accordance with the Drainage 
Report 07182 Rev 00, and within one month of the completion of the 
construction of the drainage system, ‘as constructed drainage layout 
drawings shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
Reason - To ensure adequate provision for drainage.  
 

Page 37



2 The development hereby approved shall be implemented in accordance 
with the measures set out in Sections 6, 7, 8 and Appendix 4 of the 
Ecological Impact Assessment (EcIA) (Rev C dated 14.09.21) prepared 
by ACD Environmental.  
Reason - To ensure there are no impacts to biodiversity as a result of the 
development. 
 

3 Within one month of this permission a fully detailed landscape and 
planting scheme for the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details and in accordance with the 
recommendations of the appropriate British Standards or other 
recognised codes of good practice.  These works shall be carried out in 
the first planting season after practical completion or first 
occupation of the development, whichever is earlier, unless otherwise 
first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Any trees or plants which, within a period of 5 years after planting, are 
removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be 
replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with others of species, size 
and number as originally approved unless a suitable alternative species 
are otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality (including 
neighbouring residential properties) and to enable proper consideration to 
be given to the impact of the proposed development on existing trees. 
 

4 The car park and portacabin hereby permitted shall only be used between 
06:00 am and 20:00 pm, Mondays to Fridays inclusive, and at no time on 
Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays. 
Reason - To ensure that the amenities of the neighbouring residential 
properties are not detrimentally affected by the use of the site outside of 
reasonable working times. 
 

5 Notwithstanding the changes of use permitted within Part 3 of Schedule 
2 Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 
2015 (as amended) (or any order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that 
Order) the car park hereby permitted shall be used for the purposes of 
parking vehicles in connection with AMK Chauffeur Drive, operating within 
Pass field Mill Business Park, and for no other purpose. 
 
Should AMK Chauffeur Drive cease to require the use of the approved 
development, the site shall be reinstated to its original (landscaped) 
condition within one month of the cessation of the use of the site and 
thereafter retained as such.    
 
 
 

Page 38



Reason - In order to maintain control over future use of the premises in 
the interests of the general amenity of the area and highway safety, and 
to restrict access to the Woolmer Forest Site of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSI) (which forms part of the Wealden Heaths Phase II SPA).   
 

6 Notwithstanding the changes of use permitted within Part 3 of Schedule 
2 Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 
2015 (as amended) (or any order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that 
Order) the portacabin hereby permitted shall be used for training 
purposes in connection with AMK Chauffeur Drive business, operating 
within Passfield Mill Business Park, and for no other purpose. 
 
Should AMK Chauffeur Drive cease to require the use of the approved 
portacabin, it shall be removed and the land reinstated to its original 
(landscaped) condition within one month of the cessation of the use of the 
portacabin, and thereafter retained as such. 
Reason - In order to maintain control over future use of the premises in 
the interests of the general amenity of the area and/or highway safety.  
 

7 No external lighting shall be installed on the site until such details have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The lighting shall be installed, operated, and maintained in 
accordance with the approved details. 
Reason - In the interests of the amenity of the occupants of neighbouring 
properties and the interests of the amenity of the area. 
Note: When submitting details for approval, it is requested that a report 
from a competent Lighting Professional is provided, confirming that the 
external lighting installation meets the Obtrusive Light Limitations for 
Exterior Lighting Installations for Environmental Zone (to be specified for 
the circumstances) as set out in the "Guidance Notes for the Reduction of 
Obtrusive Light GN01:2011" issued by the Institute of Lighting 
Professionals. 
 

8 Within one month of this permission details of measures to prevent 
access to, and use of, the car parking area by those other than 
employees of, or visitors to, AMK Chauffeur Drive shall be submitted to, 
and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved 
measures shall be installed within one month of their approval and 
permanently retained and maintained as such, and used 
thereafter at all times.  
 
Reason – In order to prevent use of the car parking areas by those not 
occupying or visiting the development, in the interests of maintaining 
parking provision for the development, and to restrict access to the 
Woolmer Forest Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) (which forms 
part of the Wealden Heaths Phase II SPA). 

Page 39



9 Within one month of the date of this permission, the approved portacabin 
shall be painted in a dark colour (details of which to be first submitted to, 
and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority). The  
portacabin shall thereafter be permanently retained and maintained as 
such. 
 
Reason – In the interests of the amenities of the site and wider landscape 
and the character and appearance of the adjoining conservation area. 
 

10 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans and particulars: 
 
Drg no. 1651/P/01 Rev A - Location plan 
Drg no. 1651/P/02 B - Revised Site layout and section 
Drg no. 1651/P/03 - Proposed cabin plans and elevations  
Tree report and Arboricultural Impact Assessment 
Drainage strategy Rev 00 (dated June 2021) 
ACD Environmental Ecological Impact Assessment (EcIA) Rev C (dated 
14.09.2021) 
 
Reason - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development. 
 

Informative Notes to Applicant: 
 
1 In accordance with paragraphs 38 and 39 of the NPPF East Hampshire 

District Council (EHDC) takes a positive and proactive approach and 
works with applicants/agents on development proposals in a manner 
focused on solutions by: 
offering a pre-application advice service, 
 
updating applicant/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing 
of their application and where possible suggesting solutions. 
 
In this instance the applicant was given the opportunity to submit 
amended plans and additional information in order to address concerns 
which had been raised by Officers. 

 
 
CASE OFFICER: Susie Ralston 01730 234242 
——————————————————————————————————————— 
 
 
 

 

Page 40



SECTION 1   Item 01    Land South of Passfield Mill Business Park, Mill Lane, Passfield, 
Liphook 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
 

Site layout and site section plan  

Page 41



SECTION 1   Item 01    Land South of Passfield Mill Business Park, Mill Lane, Passfield, 
Liphook 

 
 

 
 
 

  
Portable cabin – plans and elevations 

Page 42


	Agenda
	 
	2. Confirmation of Minutes
	Minutes
	44. Acceptance of Supplementary Matters
	47. PART 2 - South Downs National Park - Applications and related planning matters to be determined or considered by the Council on behalf of the South Downs National Park Authority.

	6. Future Items
	7.(i) 55824/001/FUL/SR - Land South of Passfield Mill Business Park, Mill Lane, Passfield, Liphook

